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Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website30%
TIX renovations30%
Office equipment20%
Vehicle30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website$ 387,739$ 314,026$ 73,713$ 53,085

TIX renovations142,365112,19730,16843,097
Vehicle13,39912,0591,3401,914
Office equipment 179,042 74,903 104,139 83,097

$ 722,545$ 513,185$ 209,360$ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS20192018

General Fund
Cash$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3) 80,780 119,715

 2,043,941 2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash 37,607              - 

Due from General Fund              -  63,703

 37,607 63,703

Casino Fund
Cash 34,928 71,932

Program Fund
Cash 1,636,019 1,100,001

Accounts receivable 21,526 6,140

 1,657,545 1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash 690,535 707,420

Accounts receivable 4,100              - 

 694,635 707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash 1,595,363 2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10) 4,977,607 1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,333 2,333

 6,575,303 4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2) 209,360 181,193

$  11,253,319$  8,243,179

LIABILITIES20192018
General Fund

Accounts payable$ 52,109$ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund              -  63,703

 52,109 101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                  -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3) 6,548 6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6) 4,949 4,651

 11,497 34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable 1,346,022 218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635 582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10) 4,644,339 2,868,938

$ 6,573,602$ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES20192018

General Fund$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund 26,110 29,596

Casino Fund 34,928 71,932

Program Fund 311,523 887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund 175,000 125,000

Public Art Fund 1,930,964 1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund 209,360 181,193

 4,679,717 4,438,104

$ 11,253,319$ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8)$ 1,921,757$ 1,864,785

Investment income 62,980 31,536
Other income 13,991 22,429
Memberships 4,775 4,950
Grant - administration 4,046 5,127

 2,007,549 1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits1,428,4551,268,673
Jury and honorariums87,99287,305
Office costs86,69170,338
Telephone, internet and website63,98962,280
Advertising and promotion30,40915,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM25,51417,682
Rent25,15327,044
Equipment lease20,03118,963
Professional fees10,2509,925
Consulting fees9,78521,712
Conferences and travel8,8359,592
Insurance5,1184,740
Bank charges and interest 499 1,290

 1,802,721 1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 204,828 313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund(84,850)(42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund 9,850 10,603

 (205,350) (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(522)236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,992,354 1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

20192018

Revenue
Sales for distribution$ 702,393$ 691,887
Commissions105,790111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income60,00060,000
Bank charges recovered13,54012,919
Gift certificates 898 593

 882,621 876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement663,265661,111
Staffing costs and benefits202,815182,940
Purchases35,13541,663
Rent28,49928,499
E-Commerce21,94317,388
Bank charges and interest15,50814,690
Office costs12,24712,790
Telephone and internet8,02613,317
Advertising and promotion 3,234 8,699

 990,672 981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(108,051)(104,397)

Transfer from General Fund 104,565 96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(3,486)(7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 29,596 37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 26,110$ 29,596

CASINO FUND20192018
Revenue

Casino revenue$            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website6,613           - 
Donations500           - 
Bank charges and interest4139
Casino expenses           -                 2,288

                 7,154                2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(7,154)74,343

Transfers to General Fund(9,850)(10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund  (20,000)           - 

  (29,850)  (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance  (37,004)  63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  71,932  8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 34,928$ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs$ 1,793,325$ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square97,11988,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4)190,000295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4)58,80060,000
Edmonton Community Foundation 15,000 44,874

 2,154,244 2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12)1,172,900              - 
Arts Habitat450,000450,000
Special Programs265,994181,220
Cornerstone Grants250,867250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11)155,831143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund150,000150,000
Lee Fund Grant118,800              - 
Indigenous Initiatives63,89652,684
Community Art and Outreach44,0423,344
Diversity and Equity41,30551,208
Cultural Plan  36,667  435,967

 2,750,302 1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund  20,000              - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(576,058)586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 887,581 301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 311,523$ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND20192018

Expenditures
Amortization$  56,683$  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(56,683)(57,267)

Transfer from General Fund  84,850  42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance28,167(14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  181,193  195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year$  209,360$  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees$ 3,191,440$ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration410,246123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation393,92125,187
City of Edmonton - Projects157,500175,000
Interest and other income  28,827  30,127

  4,181,934  617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees2,820,420208,005
Staffing costs and benefits286,011256,126
Projects118,684140,917
Rent58,11759,353
Office costs36,29842,444
Conservation expense97,52243,510
Selection committee10,1515,979
Consulting fees              -   38,500

  3,427,203  794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures754,731(177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund  25,785  (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance780,516(229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,150,448  1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10)$  1,930,964$  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

20192018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants$ 9,928,000$ 9,928,000
Investment income48,66948,723
Miscellaneous income 33,500 4,400

  10,010,169 9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants6,269,4806,256,050
Festival Operating Grants1,859,6951,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants848,6251,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants463,900370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants214,200219,930
Festival Seed Grants100,00066,500
Travel Grants81,481100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants75,00063,470
Organizational Support Grants23,56939,300
Administration14,419295,220
Community Arts Grants  9,800 88,370

       9,960,169      10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures50,000(350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  125,000  475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 175,000$ 125,000

GENERAL FUND20192018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures$ 204,828$ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable38,935(21,385)
Accounts payable  14,762  10,596

  258,525  302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund(63,703)13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850)(42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

  (269,053)  (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash  (10,528)  239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year  1,973,689  1,734,163

Cash, End of Year$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 
events promoted 

through TIX

33  
new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	 The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	 Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	 The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	 Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	 Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	 Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	 Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	 Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	 Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	 Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	 Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	 Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	 Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	 Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2nd Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P  780.424.2787    
F  780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website30%
TIX renovations30%
Office equipment20%
Vehicle30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website$ 387,739$ 314,026$ 73,713$ 53,085

TIX renovations142,365112,19730,16843,097
Vehicle13,39912,0591,3401,914
Office equipment 179,042 74,903 104,139 83,097

$ 722,545$ 513,185$ 209,360$ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS20192018

General Fund
Cash$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3) 80,780 119,715

 2,043,941 2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash 37,607              - 

Due from General Fund              -  63,703

 37,607 63,703

Casino Fund
Cash 34,928 71,932

Program Fund
Cash 1,636,019 1,100,001

Accounts receivable 21,526 6,140

 1,657,545 1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash 690,535 707,420

Accounts receivable 4,100              - 

 694,635 707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash 1,595,363 2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10) 4,977,607 1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,333 2,333

 6,575,303 4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2) 209,360 181,193

$  11,253,319$  8,243,179

LIABILITIES20192018
General Fund

Accounts payable$ 52,109$ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund              -  63,703

 52,109 101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                  -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3) 6,548 6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6) 4,949 4,651

 11,497 34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable 1,346,022 218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635 582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10) 4,644,339 2,868,938

$ 6,573,602$ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES20192018

General Fund$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund 26,110 29,596

Casino Fund 34,928 71,932

Program Fund 311,523 887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund 175,000 125,000

Public Art Fund 1,930,964 1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund 209,360 181,193

 4,679,717 4,438,104

$ 11,253,319$ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8)$ 1,921,757$ 1,864,785

Investment income 62,980 31,536
Other income 13,991 22,429
Memberships 4,775 4,950
Grant - administration 4,046 5,127

 2,007,549 1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits1,428,4551,268,673
Jury and honorariums87,99287,305
Office costs86,69170,338
Telephone, internet and website63,98962,280
Advertising and promotion30,40915,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM25,51417,682
Rent25,15327,044
Equipment lease20,03118,963
Professional fees10,2509,925
Consulting fees9,78521,712
Conferences and travel8,8359,592
Insurance5,1184,740
Bank charges and interest 499 1,290

 1,802,721 1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 204,828 313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund(84,850)(42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund 9,850 10,603

 (205,350) (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(522)236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,992,354 1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

20192018

Revenue
Sales for distribution$ 702,393$ 691,887
Commissions105,790111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income60,00060,000
Bank charges recovered13,54012,919
Gift certificates 898 593

 882,621 876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement663,265661,111
Staffing costs and benefits202,815182,940
Purchases35,13541,663
Rent28,49928,499
E-Commerce21,94317,388
Bank charges and interest15,50814,690
Office costs12,24712,790
Telephone and internet8,02613,317
Advertising and promotion 3,234 8,699

 990,672 981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(108,051)(104,397)

Transfer from General Fund 104,565 96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(3,486)(7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 29,596 37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 26,110$ 29,596

CASINO FUND20192018
Revenue

Casino revenue$            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website6,613           - 
Donations500           - 
Bank charges and interest4139
Casino expenses           -                 2,288

                 7,154                2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(7,154)74,343

Transfers to General Fund(9,850)(10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund  (20,000)           - 

  (29,850)  (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance  (37,004)  63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  71,932  8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 34,928$ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs$ 1,793,325$ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square97,11988,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4)190,000295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4)58,80060,000
Edmonton Community Foundation 15,000 44,874

 2,154,244 2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12)1,172,900              - 
Arts Habitat450,000450,000
Special Programs265,994181,220
Cornerstone Grants250,867250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11)155,831143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund150,000150,000
Lee Fund Grant118,800              - 
Indigenous Initiatives63,89652,684
Community Art and Outreach44,0423,344
Diversity and Equity41,30551,208
Cultural Plan  36,667  435,967

 2,750,302 1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund  20,000              - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(576,058)586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 887,581 301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 311,523$ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND20192018

Expenditures
Amortization$  56,683$  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(56,683)(57,267)

Transfer from General Fund  84,850  42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance28,167(14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  181,193  195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year$  209,360$  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees$ 3,191,440$ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration410,246123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation393,92125,187
City of Edmonton - Projects157,500175,000
Interest and other income  28,827  30,127

  4,181,934  617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees2,820,420208,005
Staffing costs and benefits286,011256,126
Projects118,684140,917
Rent58,11759,353
Office costs36,29842,444
Conservation expense97,52243,510
Selection committee10,1515,979
Consulting fees              -   38,500

  3,427,203  794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures754,731(177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund  25,785  (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance780,516(229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,150,448  1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10)$  1,930,964$  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

20192018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants$ 9,928,000$ 9,928,000
Investment income48,66948,723
Miscellaneous income 33,500 4,400

  10,010,169 9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants6,269,4806,256,050
Festival Operating Grants1,859,6951,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants848,6251,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants463,900370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants214,200219,930
Festival Seed Grants100,00066,500
Travel Grants81,481100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants75,00063,470
Organizational Support Grants23,56939,300
Administration14,419295,220
Community Arts Grants  9,800 88,370

       9,960,169      10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures50,000(350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  125,000  475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 175,000$ 125,000

GENERAL FUND20192018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures$ 204,828$ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable38,935(21,385)
Accounts payable  14,762  10,596

  258,525  302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund(63,703)13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850)(42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

  (269,053)  (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash  (10,528)  239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year  1,973,689  1,734,163

Cash, End of Year$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 
events promoted 

through TIX

33  
new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	 The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	 Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	 The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	 Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	 Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	 Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	 Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	 Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	 Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	 Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	 Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	 Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	 Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	 Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2nd Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P  780.424.2787    
F  780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website30%
TIX renovations30%
Office equipment20%
Vehicle30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website$ 387,739$ 314,026$ 73,713$ 53,085

TIX renovations142,365112,19730,16843,097
Vehicle13,39912,0591,3401,914
Office equipment 179,042 74,903 104,139 83,097

$ 722,545$ 513,185$ 209,360$ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS20192018

General Fund
Cash$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3) 80,780 119,715

 2,043,941 2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash 37,607              - 

Due from General Fund              -  63,703

 37,607 63,703

Casino Fund
Cash 34,928 71,932

Program Fund
Cash 1,636,019 1,100,001

Accounts receivable 21,526 6,140

 1,657,545 1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash 690,535 707,420

Accounts receivable 4,100              - 

 694,635 707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash 1,595,363 2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10) 4,977,607 1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,333 2,333

 6,575,303 4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2) 209,360 181,193

$  11,253,319$  8,243,179

LIABILITIES20192018
General Fund

Accounts payable$ 52,109$ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund              -  63,703

 52,109 101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                  -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3) 6,548 6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6) 4,949 4,651

 11,497 34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable 1,346,022 218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635 582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10) 4,644,339 2,868,938

$ 6,573,602$ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES20192018

General Fund$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund 26,110 29,596

Casino Fund 34,928 71,932

Program Fund 311,523 887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund 175,000 125,000

Public Art Fund 1,930,964 1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund 209,360 181,193

 4,679,717 4,438,104

$ 11,253,319$ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8)$ 1,921,757$ 1,864,785

Investment income 62,980 31,536
Other income 13,991 22,429
Memberships 4,775 4,950
Grant - administration 4,046 5,127

 2,007,549 1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits1,428,4551,268,673
Jury and honorariums87,99287,305
Office costs86,69170,338
Telephone, internet and website63,98962,280
Advertising and promotion30,40915,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM25,51417,682
Rent25,15327,044
Equipment lease20,03118,963
Professional fees10,2509,925
Consulting fees9,78521,712
Conferences and travel8,8359,592
Insurance5,1184,740
Bank charges and interest 499 1,290

 1,802,721 1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 204,828 313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund(84,850)(42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund 9,850 10,603

 (205,350) (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(522)236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,992,354 1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

20192018

Revenue
Sales for distribution$ 702,393$ 691,887
Commissions105,790111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income60,00060,000
Bank charges recovered13,54012,919
Gift certificates 898 593

 882,621 876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement663,265661,111
Staffing costs and benefits202,815182,940
Purchases35,13541,663
Rent28,49928,499
E-Commerce21,94317,388
Bank charges and interest15,50814,690
Office costs12,24712,790
Telephone and internet8,02613,317
Advertising and promotion 3,234 8,699

 990,672 981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(108,051)(104,397)

Transfer from General Fund 104,565 96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(3,486)(7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 29,596 37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 26,110$ 29,596

CASINO FUND20192018
Revenue

Casino revenue$            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website6,613           - 
Donations500           - 
Bank charges and interest4139
Casino expenses           -                 2,288

                 7,154                2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(7,154)74,343

Transfers to General Fund(9,850)(10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund  (20,000)           - 

  (29,850)  (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance  (37,004)  63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  71,932  8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 34,928$ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs$ 1,793,325$ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square97,11988,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4)190,000295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4)58,80060,000
Edmonton Community Foundation 15,000 44,874

 2,154,244 2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12)1,172,900              - 
Arts Habitat450,000450,000
Special Programs265,994181,220
Cornerstone Grants250,867250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11)155,831143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund150,000150,000
Lee Fund Grant118,800              - 
Indigenous Initiatives63,89652,684
Community Art and Outreach44,0423,344
Diversity and Equity41,30551,208
Cultural Plan  36,667  435,967

 2,750,302 1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund  20,000              - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(576,058)586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 887,581 301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 311,523$ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND20192018

Expenditures
Amortization$  56,683$  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(56,683)(57,267)

Transfer from General Fund  84,850  42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance28,167(14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  181,193  195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year$  209,360$  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees$ 3,191,440$ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration410,246123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation393,92125,187
City of Edmonton - Projects157,500175,000
Interest and other income  28,827  30,127

  4,181,934  617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees2,820,420208,005
Staffing costs and benefits286,011256,126
Projects118,684140,917
Rent58,11759,353
Office costs36,29842,444
Conservation expense97,52243,510
Selection committee10,1515,979
Consulting fees              -   38,500

  3,427,203  794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures754,731(177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund  25,785  (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance780,516(229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,150,448  1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10)$  1,930,964$  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

20192018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants$ 9,928,000$ 9,928,000
Investment income48,66948,723
Miscellaneous income 33,500 4,400

  10,010,169 9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants6,269,4806,256,050
Festival Operating Grants1,859,6951,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants848,6251,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants463,900370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants214,200219,930
Festival Seed Grants100,00066,500
Travel Grants81,481100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants75,00063,470
Organizational Support Grants23,56939,300
Administration14,419295,220
Community Arts Grants  9,800 88,370

       9,960,169      10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures50,000(350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  125,000  475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 175,000$ 125,000

GENERAL FUND20192018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures$ 204,828$ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable38,935(21,385)
Accounts payable  14,762  10,596

  258,525  302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund(63,703)13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850)(42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

  (269,053)  (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash  (10,528)  239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year  1,973,689  1,734,163

Cash, End of Year$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 
events promoted 

through TIX

33  
new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	 The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	 Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	 The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	 Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	 Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	 Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	 Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	 Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	 Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	 Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	 Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	 Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	 Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	 Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2nd Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P  780.424.2787    
F  780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website 30%
TIX renovations 30%
Office equipment 20%
Vehicle 30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website $ 387,739 $ 314,026 $ 73,713 $ 53,085

TIX renovations 142,365 112,197 30,168 43,097
Vehicle 13,399 12,059 1,340 1,914
Office equipment  179,042  74,903  104,139  83,097

$ 722,545 $ 513,185 $ 209,360 $ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS 2019 2018

General Fund
Cash $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3)  80,780  119,715

 2,043,941  2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash  37,607               - 

Due from General Fund               -  63,703

 37,607  63,703

Casino Fund
Cash  34,928  71,932

Program Fund
Cash  1,636,019  1,100,001

Accounts receivable  21,526  6,140

 1,657,545  1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash  690,535  707,420

Accounts receivable  4,100               - 

 694,635  707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash  1,595,363  2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10)  4,977,607  1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits  2,333  2,333

 6,575,303  4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2)  209,360  181,193

$  11,253,319 $  8,243,179

LIABILITIES 2019 2018
General Fund

Accounts payable $ 52,109 $ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund               -  63,703

 52,109  101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                   -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3)  6,548  6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6)  4,949  4,651

 11,497  34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable  1,346,022  218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635  582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10)  4,644,339  2,868,938

$ 6,573,602 $ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES 2019 2018

General Fund $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund  26,110  29,596

Casino Fund  34,928  71,932

Program Fund  311,523  887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund  175,000  125,000

Public Art Fund  1,930,964  1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund  209,360  181,193

 4,679,717  4,438,104

$ 11,253,319 $ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8) $ 1,921,757 $ 1,864,785

Investment income  62,980  31,536
Other income  13,991  22,429
Memberships  4,775  4,950
Grant - administration  4,046  5,127

 2,007,549  1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits 1,428,455 1,268,673
Jury and honorariums 87,992 87,305
Office costs 86,691 70,338
Telephone, internet and website 63,989 62,280
Advertising and promotion 30,409 15,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM 25,514 17,682
Rent 25,153 27,044
Equipment lease 20,031 18,963
Professional fees 10,250 9,925
Consulting fees 9,785 21,712
Conferences and travel 8,835 9,592
Insurance 5,118 4,740
Bank charges and interest  499  1,290

 1,802,721  1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures  204,828  313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund (84,850) (42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

 (205,350)  (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (522) 236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,992,354  1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
Sales for distribution $ 702,393 $ 691,887
Commissions 105,790 111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income 60,000 60,000
Bank charges recovered 13,540 12,919
Gift certificates  898  593

 882,621  876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement 663,265 661,111
Staffing costs and benefits 202,815 182,940
Purchases 35,135 41,663
Rent 28,499 28,499
E-Commerce 21,943 17,388
Bank charges and interest 15,508 14,690
Office costs 12,247 12,790
Telephone and internet 8,026 13,317
Advertising and promotion  3,234  8,699

 990,672  981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (108,051) (104,397)

Transfer from General Fund  104,565  96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,486) (7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  29,596  37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 26,110 $ 29,596

CASINO FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

Casino revenue $            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website 6,613            - 
Donations 500            - 
Bank charges and interest 41 39
Casino expenses            -                 2,288

                 7,154                 2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (7,154) 74,343

Transfers to General Fund (9,850) (10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund   (20,000)            - 

  (29,850)   (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance   (37,004)   63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   71,932   8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 34,928 $ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs $ 1,793,325 $ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square 97,119 88,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) 190,000 295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4) 58,800 60,000
Edmonton Community Foundation  15,000  44,874

 2,154,244  2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12) 1,172,900               - 
Arts Habitat 450,000 450,000
Special Programs 265,994 181,220
Cornerstone Grants 250,867 250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11) 155,831 143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund 150,000 150,000
Lee Fund Grant 118,800               - 
Indigenous Initiatives 63,896 52,684
Community Art and Outreach 44,042 3,344
Diversity and Equity 41,305 51,208
Cultural Plan   36,667   435,967

 2,750,302  1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund   20,000               - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (576,058) 586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  887,581  301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 311,523 $ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND 2019 2018

Expenditures
Amortization $  56,683 $  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (56,683) (57,267)

Transfer from General Fund   84,850   42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 28,167 (14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   181,193   195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year $  209,360 $  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	 Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees $ 3,191,440 $ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration 410,246 123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation 393,921 25,187
City of Edmonton - Projects 157,500 175,000
Interest and other income   28,827   30,127

  4,181,934   617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees 2,820,420 208,005
Staffing costs and benefits 286,011 256,126
Projects 118,684 140,917
Rent 58,117 59,353
Office costs 36,298 42,444
Conservation expense 97,522 43,510
Selection committee 10,151 5,979
Consulting fees               -   38,500

  3,427,203   794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 754,731 (177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund   25,785   (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 780,516 (229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   1,150,448   1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10) $  1,930,964 $  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants $ 9,928,000 $ 9,928,000
Investment income 48,669 48,723
Miscellaneous income  33,500  4,400

  10,010,169  9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants 6,269,480 6,256,050
Festival Operating Grants 1,859,695 1,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants 848,625 1,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants 463,900 370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants 214,200 219,930
Festival Seed Grants 100,000 66,500
Travel Grants 81,481 100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants 75,000 63,470
Organizational Support Grants 23,569 39,300
Administration 14,419 295,220
Community Arts Grants   9,800  88,370

       9,960,169       10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 50,000 (350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   125,000   475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 175,000 $ 125,000

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 204,828 $ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable 38,935 (21,385)
Accounts payable   14,762   10,596

  258,525   302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund (63,703) 13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850) (42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund   9,850   10,603

  (269,053)   (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash   (10,528)   239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year   1,973,689   1,734,163

Cash, End of Year $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 events promoted 
through TIX

33  new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2
nd

 Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P 780.424.2787    
F 780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website 30%
TIX renovations 30%
Office equipment 20%
Vehicle 30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website $ 387,739 $ 314,026 $ 73,713 $ 53,085

TIX renovations 142,365 112,197 30,168 43,097
Vehicle 13,399 12,059 1,340 1,914
Office equipment  179,042  74,903  104,139  83,097

$ 722,545 $ 513,185 $ 209,360 $ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS 2019 2018

General Fund
Cash $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3)  80,780  119,715

 2,043,941  2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash  37,607               - 

Due from General Fund               -  63,703

 37,607  63,703

Casino Fund
Cash  34,928  71,932

Program Fund
Cash  1,636,019  1,100,001

Accounts receivable  21,526  6,140

 1,657,545  1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash  690,535  707,420

Accounts receivable  4,100               - 

 694,635  707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash  1,595,363  2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10)  4,977,607  1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits  2,333  2,333

 6,575,303  4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2)  209,360  181,193

$  11,253,319 $  8,243,179

LIABILITIES 2019 2018
General Fund

Accounts payable $ 52,109 $ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund               -  63,703

 52,109  101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                   -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3)  6,548  6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6)  4,949  4,651

 11,497  34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable  1,346,022  218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635  582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10)  4,644,339  2,868,938

$ 6,573,602 $ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES 2019 2018

General Fund $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund  26,110  29,596

Casino Fund  34,928  71,932

Program Fund  311,523  887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund  175,000  125,000

Public Art Fund  1,930,964  1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund  209,360  181,193

 4,679,717  4,438,104

$ 11,253,319 $ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8) $ 1,921,757 $ 1,864,785

Investment income  62,980  31,536
Other income  13,991  22,429
Memberships  4,775  4,950
Grant - administration  4,046  5,127

 2,007,549  1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits 1,428,455 1,268,673
Jury and honorariums 87,992 87,305
Office costs 86,691 70,338
Telephone, internet and website 63,989 62,280
Advertising and promotion 30,409 15,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM 25,514 17,682
Rent 25,153 27,044
Equipment lease 20,031 18,963
Professional fees 10,250 9,925
Consulting fees 9,785 21,712
Conferences and travel 8,835 9,592
Insurance 5,118 4,740
Bank charges and interest  499  1,290

 1,802,721  1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures  204,828  313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund (84,850) (42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

 (205,350)  (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (522) 236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,992,354  1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
Sales for distribution $ 702,393 $ 691,887
Commissions 105,790 111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income 60,000 60,000
Bank charges recovered 13,540 12,919
Gift certificates  898  593

 882,621  876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement 663,265 661,111
Staffing costs and benefits 202,815 182,940
Purchases 35,135 41,663
Rent 28,499 28,499
E-Commerce 21,943 17,388
Bank charges and interest 15,508 14,690
Office costs 12,247 12,790
Telephone and internet 8,026 13,317
Advertising and promotion  3,234  8,699

 990,672  981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (108,051) (104,397)

Transfer from General Fund  104,565  96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,486) (7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  29,596  37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 26,110 $ 29,596

CASINO FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

Casino revenue $            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website 6,613            - 
Donations 500            - 
Bank charges and interest 41 39
Casino expenses            -                 2,288

                 7,154                 2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (7,154) 74,343

Transfers to General Fund (9,850) (10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund   (20,000)            - 

  (29,850)   (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance   (37,004)   63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   71,932   8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 34,928 $ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs $ 1,793,325 $ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square 97,119 88,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) 190,000 295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4) 58,800 60,000
Edmonton Community Foundation  15,000  44,874

 2,154,244  2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12) 1,172,900               - 
Arts Habitat 450,000 450,000
Special Programs 265,994 181,220
Cornerstone Grants 250,867 250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11) 155,831 143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund 150,000 150,000
Lee Fund Grant 118,800               - 
Indigenous Initiatives 63,896 52,684
Community Art and Outreach 44,042 3,344
Diversity and Equity 41,305 51,208
Cultural Plan   36,667   435,967

 2,750,302  1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund   20,000               - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (576,058) 586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  887,581  301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 311,523 $ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND 2019 2018

Expenditures
Amortization $  56,683 $  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (56,683) (57,267)

Transfer from General Fund   84,850   42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 28,167 (14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   181,193   195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year $  209,360 $  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	 Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees $ 3,191,440 $ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration 410,246 123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation 393,921 25,187
City of Edmonton - Projects 157,500 175,000
Interest and other income   28,827   30,127

  4,181,934   617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees 2,820,420 208,005
Staffing costs and benefits 286,011 256,126
Projects 118,684 140,917
Rent 58,117 59,353
Office costs 36,298 42,444
Conservation expense 97,522 43,510
Selection committee 10,151 5,979
Consulting fees               -   38,500

  3,427,203   794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 754,731 (177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund   25,785   (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 780,516 (229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   1,150,448   1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10) $  1,930,964 $  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants $ 9,928,000 $ 9,928,000
Investment income 48,669 48,723
Miscellaneous income  33,500  4,400

  10,010,169  9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants 6,269,480 6,256,050
Festival Operating Grants 1,859,695 1,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants 848,625 1,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants 463,900 370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants 214,200 219,930
Festival Seed Grants 100,000 66,500
Travel Grants 81,481 100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants 75,000 63,470
Organizational Support Grants 23,569 39,300
Administration 14,419 295,220
Community Arts Grants   9,800  88,370

       9,960,169       10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 50,000 (350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   125,000   475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 175,000 $ 125,000

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 204,828 $ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable 38,935 (21,385)
Accounts payable   14,762   10,596

  258,525   302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund (63,703) 13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850) (42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund   9,850   10,603

  (269,053)   (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash   (10,528)   239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year   1,973,689   1,734,163

Cash, End of Year $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 events promoted 
through TIX

33  new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2
nd

 Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P 780.424.2787    
F 780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website 30%
TIX renovations 30%
Office equipment 20%
Vehicle 30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website $ 387,739 $ 314,026 $ 73,713 $ 53,085

TIX renovations 142,365 112,197 30,168 43,097
Vehicle 13,399 12,059 1,340 1,914
Office equipment  179,042  74,903  104,139  83,097

$ 722,545 $ 513,185 $ 209,360 $ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS 2019 2018

General Fund
Cash $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3)  80,780  119,715

 2,043,941  2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash  37,607               - 

Due from General Fund               -  63,703

 37,607  63,703

Casino Fund
Cash  34,928  71,932

Program Fund
Cash  1,636,019  1,100,001

Accounts receivable  21,526  6,140

 1,657,545  1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash  690,535  707,420

Accounts receivable  4,100               - 

 694,635  707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash  1,595,363  2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10)  4,977,607  1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits  2,333  2,333

 6,575,303  4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2)  209,360  181,193

$  11,253,319 $  8,243,179

LIABILITIES 2019 2018
General Fund

Accounts payable $ 52,109 $ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund               -  63,703

 52,109  101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                   -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3)  6,548  6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6)  4,949  4,651

 11,497  34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable  1,346,022  218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635  582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10)  4,644,339  2,868,938

$ 6,573,602 $ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES 2019 2018

General Fund $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund  26,110  29,596

Casino Fund  34,928  71,932

Program Fund  311,523  887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund  175,000  125,000

Public Art Fund  1,930,964  1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund  209,360  181,193

 4,679,717  4,438,104

$ 11,253,319 $ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8) $ 1,921,757 $ 1,864,785

Investment income  62,980  31,536
Other income  13,991  22,429
Memberships  4,775  4,950
Grant - administration  4,046  5,127

 2,007,549  1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits 1,428,455 1,268,673
Jury and honorariums 87,992 87,305
Office costs 86,691 70,338
Telephone, internet and website 63,989 62,280
Advertising and promotion 30,409 15,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM 25,514 17,682
Rent 25,153 27,044
Equipment lease 20,031 18,963
Professional fees 10,250 9,925
Consulting fees 9,785 21,712
Conferences and travel 8,835 9,592
Insurance 5,118 4,740
Bank charges and interest  499  1,290

 1,802,721  1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures  204,828  313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund (84,850) (42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

 (205,350)  (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (522) 236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,992,354  1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
Sales for distribution $ 702,393 $ 691,887
Commissions 105,790 111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income 60,000 60,000
Bank charges recovered 13,540 12,919
Gift certificates  898  593

 882,621  876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement 663,265 661,111
Staffing costs and benefits 202,815 182,940
Purchases 35,135 41,663
Rent 28,499 28,499
E-Commerce 21,943 17,388
Bank charges and interest 15,508 14,690
Office costs 12,247 12,790
Telephone and internet 8,026 13,317
Advertising and promotion  3,234  8,699

 990,672  981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (108,051) (104,397)

Transfer from General Fund  104,565  96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,486) (7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  29,596  37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 26,110 $ 29,596

CASINO FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

Casino revenue $            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website 6,613            - 
Donations 500            - 
Bank charges and interest 41 39
Casino expenses            -                 2,288

                 7,154                 2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (7,154) 74,343

Transfers to General Fund (9,850) (10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund   (20,000)            - 

  (29,850)   (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance   (37,004)   63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   71,932   8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 34,928 $ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs $ 1,793,325 $ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square 97,119 88,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) 190,000 295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4) 58,800 60,000
Edmonton Community Foundation  15,000  44,874

 2,154,244  2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12) 1,172,900               - 
Arts Habitat 450,000 450,000
Special Programs 265,994 181,220
Cornerstone Grants 250,867 250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11) 155,831 143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund 150,000 150,000
Lee Fund Grant 118,800               - 
Indigenous Initiatives 63,896 52,684
Community Art and Outreach 44,042 3,344
Diversity and Equity 41,305 51,208
Cultural Plan   36,667   435,967

 2,750,302  1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund   20,000               - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (576,058) 586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  887,581  301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 311,523 $ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND 2019 2018

Expenditures
Amortization $  56,683 $  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (56,683) (57,267)

Transfer from General Fund   84,850   42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 28,167 (14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   181,193   195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year $  209,360 $  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	 Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees $ 3,191,440 $ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration 410,246 123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation 393,921 25,187
City of Edmonton - Projects 157,500 175,000
Interest and other income   28,827   30,127

  4,181,934   617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees 2,820,420 208,005
Staffing costs and benefits 286,011 256,126
Projects 118,684 140,917
Rent 58,117 59,353
Office costs 36,298 42,444
Conservation expense 97,522 43,510
Selection committee 10,151 5,979
Consulting fees               -   38,500

  3,427,203   794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 754,731 (177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund   25,785   (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 780,516 (229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   1,150,448   1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10) $  1,930,964 $  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants $ 9,928,000 $ 9,928,000
Investment income 48,669 48,723
Miscellaneous income  33,500  4,400

  10,010,169  9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants 6,269,480 6,256,050
Festival Operating Grants 1,859,695 1,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants 848,625 1,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants 463,900 370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants 214,200 219,930
Festival Seed Grants 100,000 66,500
Travel Grants 81,481 100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants 75,000 63,470
Organizational Support Grants 23,569 39,300
Administration 14,419 295,220
Community Arts Grants   9,800  88,370

       9,960,169       10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 50,000 (350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   125,000   475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 175,000 $ 125,000

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 204,828 $ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable 38,935 (21,385)
Accounts payable   14,762   10,596

  258,525   302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund (63,703) 13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850) (42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund   9,850   10,603

  (269,053)   (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash   (10,528)   239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year   1,973,689   1,734,163

Cash, End of Year $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 events promoted 
through TIX

33  new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2
nd

 Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P 780.424.2787    
F 780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website 30%
TIX renovations 30%
Office equipment 20%
Vehicle 30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website $ 387,739 $ 314,026 $ 73,713 $ 53,085

TIX renovations 142,365 112,197 30,168 43,097
Vehicle 13,399 12,059 1,340 1,914
Office equipment  179,042  74,903  104,139  83,097

$ 722,545 $ 513,185 $ 209,360 $ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS 2019 2018

General Fund
Cash $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3)  80,780  119,715

 2,043,941  2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash  37,607               - 

Due from General Fund               -  63,703

 37,607  63,703

Casino Fund
Cash  34,928  71,932

Program Fund
Cash  1,636,019  1,100,001

Accounts receivable  21,526  6,140

 1,657,545  1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash  690,535  707,420

Accounts receivable  4,100               - 

 694,635  707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash  1,595,363  2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10)  4,977,607  1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits  2,333  2,333

 6,575,303  4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2)  209,360  181,193

$  11,253,319 $  8,243,179

LIABILITIES 2019 2018
General Fund

Accounts payable $ 52,109 $ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund               -  63,703

 52,109  101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                   -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3)  6,548  6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6)  4,949  4,651

 11,497  34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable  1,346,022  218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635  582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10)  4,644,339  2,868,938

$ 6,573,602 $ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES 2019 2018

General Fund $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund  26,110  29,596

Casino Fund  34,928  71,932

Program Fund  311,523  887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund  175,000  125,000

Public Art Fund  1,930,964  1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund  209,360  181,193

 4,679,717  4,438,104

$ 11,253,319 $ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8) $ 1,921,757 $ 1,864,785

Investment income  62,980  31,536
Other income  13,991  22,429
Memberships  4,775  4,950
Grant - administration  4,046  5,127

 2,007,549  1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits 1,428,455 1,268,673
Jury and honorariums 87,992 87,305
Office costs 86,691 70,338
Telephone, internet and website 63,989 62,280
Advertising and promotion 30,409 15,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM 25,514 17,682
Rent 25,153 27,044
Equipment lease 20,031 18,963
Professional fees 10,250 9,925
Consulting fees 9,785 21,712
Conferences and travel 8,835 9,592
Insurance 5,118 4,740
Bank charges and interest  499  1,290

 1,802,721  1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures  204,828  313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund (84,850) (42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

 (205,350)  (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (522) 236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,992,354  1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,991,832 $ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
Sales for distribution $ 702,393 $ 691,887
Commissions 105,790 111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income 60,000 60,000
Bank charges recovered 13,540 12,919
Gift certificates  898  593

 882,621  876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement 663,265 661,111
Staffing costs and benefits 202,815 182,940
Purchases 35,135 41,663
Rent 28,499 28,499
E-Commerce 21,943 17,388
Bank charges and interest 15,508 14,690
Office costs 12,247 12,790
Telephone and internet 8,026 13,317
Advertising and promotion  3,234  8,699

 990,672  981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (108,051) (104,397)

Transfer from General Fund  104,565  96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,486) (7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  29,596  37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 26,110 $ 29,596

CASINO FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

Casino revenue $            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website 6,613            - 
Donations 500            - 
Bank charges and interest 41 39
Casino expenses            -                 2,288

                 7,154                 2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (7,154) 74,343

Transfers to General Fund (9,850) (10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund   (20,000)            - 

  (29,850)   (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance   (37,004)   63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   71,932   8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 34,928 $ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs $ 1,793,325 $ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square 97,119 88,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) 190,000 295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4) 58,800 60,000
Edmonton Community Foundation  15,000  44,874

 2,154,244  2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12) 1,172,900               - 
Arts Habitat 450,000 450,000
Special Programs 265,994 181,220
Cornerstone Grants 250,867 250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11) 155,831 143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund 150,000 150,000
Lee Fund Grant 118,800               - 
Indigenous Initiatives 63,896 52,684
Community Art and Outreach 44,042 3,344
Diversity and Equity 41,305 51,208
Cultural Plan   36,667   435,967

 2,750,302  1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund   20,000               - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance (576,058) 586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  887,581  301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 311,523 $ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND 2019 2018

Expenditures
Amortization $  56,683 $  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures (56,683) (57,267)

Transfer from General Fund   84,850   42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 28,167 (14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   181,193   195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year $  209,360 $  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	 Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND 2019 2018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees $ 3,191,440 $ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration 410,246 123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation 393,921 25,187
City of Edmonton - Projects 157,500 175,000
Interest and other income   28,827   30,127

  4,181,934   617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees 2,820,420 208,005
Staffing costs and benefits 286,011 256,126
Projects 118,684 140,917
Rent 58,117 59,353
Office costs 36,298 42,444
Conservation expense 97,522 43,510
Selection committee 10,151 5,979
Consulting fees               -   38,500

  3,427,203   794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 754,731 (177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund   25,785   (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 780,516 (229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   1,150,448   1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10) $  1,930,964 $  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

2019 2018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants $ 9,928,000 $ 9,928,000
Investment income 48,669 48,723
Miscellaneous income  33,500  4,400

  10,010,169  9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants 6,269,480 6,256,050
Festival Operating Grants 1,859,695 1,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants 848,625 1,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants 463,900 370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants 214,200 219,930
Festival Seed Grants 100,000 66,500
Travel Grants 81,481 100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants 75,000 63,470
Organizational Support Grants 23,569 39,300
Administration 14,419 295,220
Community Arts Grants   9,800  88,370

       9,960,169       10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures 50,000 (350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year   125,000   475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 175,000 $ 125,000

GENERAL FUND 2019 2018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures $ 204,828 $ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable 38,935 (21,385)
Accounts payable   14,762   10,596

  258,525   302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund (63,703) 13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850) (42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund (104,565) (96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund (25,785) 51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund   9,850   10,603

  (269,053)   (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash   (10,528)   239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year   1,973,689   1,734,163

Cash, End of Year $ 1,963,161 $ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 events promoted 
through TIX

33  new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2
nd

 Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P 780.424.2787    
F 780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(as of December 31, 2019)

Executive Committee  

Noel Xavier – Chair

Debbie Houle – Vice Chair

Vivianne Favreau-Sparrow – Treasurer

Pat Darbasie – Secretary

Members at Large

Ida Beltran-Lucila

Christopher 
Filipowicz

Jean-Pierre Fournier

Cindy Gaudet

Rayanne Haines

Michael Hamm

Aasttha Khajuria

Morgan McClelland

Mark Power

Mireille Rijavec

Don Ross

Ex-Officio

Councillor Ben Henderson, CoE*

Councillor Scott McKeen, CoE*

The Edmonton Arts Council thanks  
Niki Anderson (CoE*),  
Glen Erickson, Jeff Haslam,  
Diane Kereluk, Don Robinson,  
Kent Sutherland, and Will Truchon  
for their contributions to the  
EAC board in 2019.

*City of Edmonton

EAC STAFF  
(as of December 31, 2019)

Chelsea Boida

Andrea Bowes

Kyra Lee Brown

Jamie Chapelsky

David Cheoros

Eva Marie Clarke 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Shirley Combden

Kristina de Guzman 
(Jan. 2019) 

Penélope Haro 
Aranda

Robert Harpin

Melanie Haynes

Chris Henderson 
(May – Oct. 2019)

Gwendoline Hunka

Sally Kim

Grace Law

Poushali Mitra

Kathryn Morin  
(Jan. – Feb. 2019)

Breanna Mroczek 
(Jan. – June 2019)

Jana O’Connor

Chris Roberts

Sanjay Shahani

Jenika Sobolewska

Bobbie Todd

David Turnbull

Jenna Turner  
(on leave)

Justina Verboom

Stephen Williams

TIX on the Square Staff

Nicole Boychuk

Liza Chatterjee  
(Jan. – June 2019)

Olivia Latta 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Kendra Litwin

Victoria Modine

Danny Ross

Amanda Skopik 
(Jan. – Sept. 2019)

Betty Thomson

Churchill Square &  
Community Programs Staff

Adam Blocka

Liam Brown

Lee-Ann Grenier

Alexandra Perala

Bob Rasko

Marwa Salman

Aleysha Sarinn

Ben Sures

Top to bottom: Ukrainian Shumka 

Dancers (Photo: Ryan Parker 

Photography). Follow The Thread 

by Noreen Crone-Findlay (pictured) 

Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: 

EAC). The Dancer by Bella Totino-

Busby & Verne Busby, Yorath House 

(Photo: DCM Photography). Cypher 

Wild, Churchill Square (Photo: Epic 

Photography). A Christmas Carol, 

Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian Jackson, 

Epic Photography).

TIX vendors, top to bottom: 
Oil and Birch, Tin Giants,  
Jazzy Glass (Photos: EAC).

Specators by Ron Kostyniuk 
(Photo: DCM Photography)

Top to bottom: le quattro, Ballet Edmonton 
(Photo: Michael Slobodian). Tierra Flamenca, 

Sonia Olla & Ismael Fernández Flamenco 
Company, Edmonton Flamenco Festival at 
Winspear Centre (Photo: Marc J. Chalifoux). 

Jim and Sam perform at 2019 NorthwestFest 

International Documentary Festival (Photo: 

Heiko Ryll). Alexandra Zierle, Black Clouds 

Rising, Mile Zero Dance's Zero Gravity 
International Performance Art Summit 
(Photo: Mat Simpson). Hunter Cardinal in 
Lake of the Strangers presented by Fringe 
Theatre Adventures (Photo: Jacqueline 
Cardinal). Poet Luciana Erregue-Sacchi was 

Artist in Residence with Action for Healthy 

Communities (A4HC) (Photo: Supplied).

untitled by Norman Yates during mural restoration and after (Photo: EAC)

Salsa City 
Sunday in City 
Hall with Manny 
Valencia y Su 
Esquina Latina  
(Photos: EAC)

Cypher Wild, 
Churchill Square 
(Photos: Epic 
Photography)

Clockwise from top: 
Kathleen Andrews, 
First Lady of Transit 
by Daphne Côté (Photo: DCM 

Photography). Things I Know to Be True by Peter 

von Tiesenhausen being installed at Stanley A. 

Milner Library (Photo: EAC). Platanos by Michelle 

Campos Castillo (Photo: DCM Photography).

Left to right: Rehearsal of The Strike, Choreographed by 
Alison Neuman (Photo: Supplied). The Big Splash by Paul 
Slipper & Mary Ann Liu, Pilot Sound Fire Station (Photo: 
DCM Photography). Exhibition: Cultivate | Instigate, 
Alberta Craft Council (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Front cover, clockwise from top centre: The Color Purple, Citadel Theatre (Photo: Ian 
Jackson, Epic Photography). An Anthology of Sticks and Stones by Allison Tunis 
(pictured) Harcourt House Gallery (Photo: EAC). Amanda Lamothe performs at Festival 

in a Box Clareview (Photo: EAC). Agent Crystalline by Marc Fornes & THEVERYMANY, 

EPS Northwest Campus (Photo: DCM Photography). Jewelry by Unconditional Love 
(Photo: EAC).  Because of Her, I Am at SkirtsAFire Festival by Yong Fei Guan (pictured) 

(Photo: Rebecca Lippiatt). Bharata natyam by Kiruthika Rathanaswami (pictured), 
Expanse Festival 2019 (Photo: Marc J Chalifoux). Allan Gilliland's recording project in 
Prague, May 2019 (Photo: Supplied). Good Crafternoon event, Alberta Craft Council as 

part of The Works Festival (Photo: Victoria Sanchez).

Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on the declining balance basis over 
the assets estimated useful life at the following annual rates:

Computer equipment and website30%
TIX renovations30%
Office equipment20%
Vehicle30%

Contributed Services
Contributed services of volunteers are not recognized as revenue in these financial statements because their 
fair value cannot be reasonably determined.

Contributed Goods
The Society only records non-cash donations when a charitable receipt is issued. These donations are 
recorded at the fair value of the items received.

Donations
With the establishment of the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) and John Mahon Arts Administrator 
Sabbatical Fund, donations that are not restricted are forwarded directly to either Fund held by the Edmonton 
Community Foundation at the discretion of the Society.

Income Taxes
The Society is a not-for-profit organization incorporated under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta 
and, as such, is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act of Canada.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for- profit 
organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of receipts and 
disbursements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to 
significant management estimates include valuation of accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, and amortization.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial 
instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
reported in the statement of income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost and 
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issuance of 
financial instruments are expensed when incurred. Conversely, transaction costs are added to the carrying 
amount for those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and 
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Society performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. 
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less 
than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value 
exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in earnings for the year.

Note 2: Property and Equipment

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization

2019 
Net Book Value

2018 
Net Book Value

Computer equipment  
and website$ 387,739$ 314,026$ 73,713$ 53,085

TIX renovations142,365112,19730,16843,097
Vehicle13,39912,0591,3401,914
Office equipment 179,042 74,903 104,139 83,097

$ 722,545$ 513,185$ 209,360$ 181,193

Note 3: Government Remittances
As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable includes $59,002 (2018 - $108,153) of Goods and Services Tax 
receivable from the federal government and accounts payable includes $nil (2018 - $331) of Goods and 
Services Tax owing to the federal government.

Note 4:Trust Funds Held by the Edmonton Community Foundation
The Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (EATF), Lee Fund and John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund 
(JMAASF) are joint projects of the EAC and the Edmonton Community Foundation (ECF). The purpose of 
the EATF fund is to invest in Edmonton’s creative community by providing grants to individual artists who 
are living and working in Edmonton. The purpose of the Lee Fund is to support community projects. The 
purpose of the JMAASF fund is to enhance the quality of life for those living in the greater Edmonton area 
by supporting qualified donees that support and promote the arts in Edmonton. Open-ended endowment 
funds have been established with ECF to which anyone can make tax deductible donations.

Note 5: Commitments
The EAC has committed to minimum lease payments of $1,750 per month for premises they occupy until May 2022.

Note 6: Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue of the TIX on the Square Fund is comprised of gift certificates sold that have not been 
redeemed.

Note 7: Financial Instruments
Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Society is 
exposed to credit risk in respect to its accounts receivable balances and cash balances. Cash is held at major 
financial institutions minimizing any potential exposure to credit risk. It is management’s opinion that the 
risk related to accounts receivable is minimal since the Society only deals with what management believes to 
be financially sound counterparts and, accordingly does not anticipate significant loss for non- performance. 
As at December 31, 2019, accounts receivable consists of 98% (2018 - 93%) due from the City of Edmonton 
thereby increasing the concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Society is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of  its receipts from  its funders and 
accounts payable.

Note 8: Economic Dependence
Ongoing operations of the EAC are dependent upon receiving continuing funding from the City of Edmonton. 
The current service agreement is in effect until December 31, 2021.

Note 9: Comparative Figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Note 10: Public Art Fund
Accounts receivable at year-end represent amounts due from the City of Edmonton for approved public 
art projects, and accounts payable represents amount owing to artists on these approved projects. Timing 
of collection of receivables and payment of payables can range from one to seven years. Public art 
disbursements include artist fees, conservation work, and administration. The fund balance at the end of the 
year includes reserves for future conservation work and administration.

Note 11: Allocated Expenses
Certain costs are recorded in the General Fund and then allocated to other funds. The allocations are based 
on staff time used by each fund. Included in Sir Winston Churchill Square expenditures in the Program Fund 
is $61,963 (2018 - $58,174) in staffing costs and benefits.

Note 12: Connections & Exchanges Initiatives
The Connections & Exchanges Initiatives grant was established by the EAC Board to enable Edmonton’s 
Arts and Festivals Organizations to undertake artistic experiments, organizational development projects, 
audience development activities and partnerships for the benefit of the arts sector. The EAC’s investments 
totaled $1,172,900. This included $148,000 in support of Indigenous initiatives and $224,900 to fund Diversity 
and Equity projects.

ASSETS20192018

General Fund
Cash$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Accounts receivable (Note 3) 80,780 119,715

 2,043,941 2,093,404

TIX on the Square Fund
Cash 37,607              - 

Due from General Fund              -  63,703

 37,607 63,703

Casino Fund
Cash 34,928 71,932

Program Fund
Cash 1,636,019 1,100,001

Accounts receivable 21,526 6,140

 1,657,545 1,106,141

Community Investment Grants Fund
Cash 690,535 707,420

Accounts receivable 4,100              - 

 694,635 707,420

Public Art Fund
Cash 1,595,363 2,432,720

Accounts receivable (Note 10) 4,977,607 1,584,333

Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,333 2,333

 6,575,303 4,019,386

Property and Equipment Fund
Property and equipment (Note 2) 209,360 181,193

$  11,253,319$  8,243,179

LIABILITIES20192018
General Fund

Accounts payable$ 52,109$ 37,347
Due to TIX on the Square Fund              -  63,703

 52,109 101,050

TIX on the Square Fund
Bank  indebtedness                  -  23,291

Accounts payable (Note 3) 6,548 6,165

Unearned revenue (Note 6) 4,949 4,651

 11,497 34,107

Program Fund
Accounts payable 1,346,022 218,560

Community Investment Grants Fund
Accounts payable

 519,635 582,420

Public Art Fund
Accounts payable (Note 10) 4,644,339 2,868,938

$ 6,573,602$ 3,805,075

FUND BALANCES20192018

General Fund$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX on the Square Fund 26,110 29,596

Casino Fund 34,928 71,932

Program Fund 311,523 887,581

Community Investment Grants Fund 175,000 125,000

Public Art Fund 1,930,964 1,150,448

Property and Equipment Fund 209,360 181,193

 4,679,717 4,438,104

$ 11,253,319$ 8,243,179

GENERAL FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton service contract 
(Note 8)$ 1,921,757$ 1,864,785

Investment income 62,980 31,536
Other income 13,991 22,429
Memberships 4,775 4,950
Grant - administration 4,046 5,127

 2,007,549 1,928,827

Expenditures
Staffing costs and benefits1,428,4551,268,673
Jury and honorariums87,99287,305
Office costs86,69170,338
Telephone, internet and website63,98962,280
Advertising and promotion30,40915,917
Board of Directors costs and AGM25,51417,682
Rent25,15327,044
Equipment lease20,03118,963
Professional fees10,2509,925
Consulting fees9,78521,712
Conferences and travel8,8359,592
Insurance5,1184,740
Bank charges and interest 499 1,290

 1,802,721 1,615,461

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures 204,828 313,366

Transfer to Property and Equipment Fund(84,850)(42,761)
Transfer from (to) Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Casino Fund 9,850 10,603

 (205,350) (76,754)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(522)236,612

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,992,354 1,755,742

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 1,991,832$ 1,992,354

TIX ON THE SQUARE 
FUND

20192018

Revenue
Sales for distribution$ 702,393$ 691,887
Commissions105,790111,301
City of Edmonton - Operating income60,00060,000
Bank charges recovered13,54012,919
Gift certificates 898 593

 882,621 876,700

Expenditures
Sales reimbursement663,265661,111
Staffing costs and benefits202,815182,940
Purchases35,13541,663
Rent28,49928,499
E-Commerce21,94317,388
Bank charges and interest15,50814,690
Office costs12,24712,790
Telephone and internet8,02613,317
Advertising and promotion 3,234 8,699

 990,672 981,097

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(108,051)(104,397)

Transfer from General Fund 104,565 96,453

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(3,486)(7,944)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 29,596 37,540

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 26,110$ 29,596

CASINO FUND20192018
Revenue

Casino revenue$            - $ 76,670

Expenditures
Telephone, internet and website6,613           - 
Donations500           - 
Bank charges and interest4139
Casino expenses           -                 2,288

                 7,154                2,327

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(7,154)74,343

Transfers to General Fund(9,850)(10,603)

Transfer to Program Fund  (20,000)           - 

  (29,850)  (10,603)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance  (37,004)  63,740

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  71,932  8,192

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 34,928$ 71,932

PROGRAM FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Programs$ 1,793,325$ 1,817,000
City of Edmonton -  

Sir Winston Churchill Square97,11988,578
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4)190,000295,000
Lee Fund Grant (Note 4)58,80060,000
Edmonton Community Foundation 15,000 44,874

 2,154,244 2,305,452

Expenditures
Connections & Exchanges Initiatives 

(Note 12)1,172,900              - 
Arts Habitat450,000450,000
Special Programs265,994181,220
Cornerstone Grants250,867250,565
Sir Winston Churchill Square (Note 11)155,831143,959
Edmonton Artists Trust Fund150,000150,000
Lee Fund Grant118,800              - 
Indigenous Initiatives63,89652,684
Community Art and Outreach44,0423,344
Diversity and Equity41,30551,208
Cultural Plan  36,667  435,967

 2,750,302 1,718,947

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures

 
(596,058)

 
586,505

Transfer from Casino Fund  20,000              - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance(576,058)586,505

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 887,581 301,076

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 311,523$ 887,581

PROPERTY AND 
EQUIPMENT FUND20192018

Expenditures
Amortization$  56,683$  57,267

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures(56,683)(57,267)

Transfer from General Fund  84,850  42,761

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance28,167(14,506)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  181,193  195,699

Fund Balance, End of Year$  209,360$  181,193

Notes to Financial  Statements For the year ended December 31, 2019

Nature of Operations
The Edmonton Arts Council Society (EAC) exists to support and promote the arts community in Edmonton. 
The EAC meets the needs of its members and the arts community as a whole though activities that:

·	Invest in Edmonton festivals, arts organizations and individual artists through municipal, corporate 
and private funding

·	Represent Edmonton’s arts community to government and other agencies and provide expert advice 
on issues that affect the arts

·	Build partnerships and initiate projects that strengthen our community

·	Create awareness of the quality, variety and value of artistic work produced in Edmonton

The EAC was incorporated on April 19, 1995 under the Societies Act of the Province of Alberta and was 
registered as a charity effective August 1, 1997 under the Income Tax Act of Canada. Work carried on by the 
EAC is dependent upon the current Service Agreement funded by the City of Edmonton.

The Society follows the restricted fund method of accounting and the operations of the Society are organized 
into project funds. A summary of each of the funds is as follows:

General Fund
Donations which have not been designated by the donor for the Edmonton Artists Trust Fund (Note 4) or 
John Mahon Arts Administrator Sabbatical Fund are placed in the General Fund. The costs of administering 
the Society and the costs of improving or expanding the Society are recorded in this fund.

TIX on the Square Fund
TIX on the Square is a community box office, retail store, and information booth. It is owned and operated 
by The Edmonton Arts Council Society and serves the entire arts and cultural community in the greater 
Edmonton region.

Casino Fund
The Casino Fund was set up in response to the Alberta Gaming and Liquor Commission’s requirement to 
have a separate account to receive proceeds from casinos managed by the Society. Funds from this account 
can only be spent in areas approved in each casino application. Proceeds are used mainly for community 
programs as well as EAC and TIX on the Square website development and updates. The Society currently 
holds a fundraising casino every two years.

Program Fund
When requested by the City of Edmonton, the EAC produces special projects. These projects have included 
Churchill Square Programming, Arts Habitat, community-based projects, equity and inclusion, and others. 

In addition, the EAC develops grant programs with the Edmonton Community Foundation and corporate 
partners.

Public Art Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies support for the City’s public art 
program as one of the key responsibilities of the EAC. This involves creation of master plans for public art, 
policy development, and production of specific public art projects generated by the Percent for Art program 
or from other sources. The public art projects are multi-year projects that range from three to seven years.

Community Investment Grants (CIG) Fund
The Service Agreement between the City of Edmonton and the EAC identifies responsibility for the City’s 
Community Investment Grants program in the arts and festivals as a core duty of the EAC. This involves 
administration of all relevant existing CIG programs as well as development of new CIG programs in the arts 
and festivals.

Property and Equipment Fund
The Property and Equipment Fund was established to collect and disburse funds on capital projects 
undertaken by the EAC and to maintain the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Society’s 
property and equipment.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Revenue Recognition
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which the events 
giving rise to the contribution have occurred. If a separate fund does not exist, the restricted contribution will 
be recorded as part of the General Fund and will be deferred and recognized as revenue when the related 
expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund in the year 
received.

Public art revenue is recognized when the public art project has been approved by the City of Edmonton and 
collection is reasonably assured.

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Cash includes cash on hand, bank deposits and term investments with maturities less than one year. Bank 
indebtedness includes cheques issued in excess of bank balance.

PUBLIC ART FUND20192018
Revenue

City of Edmonton - Artist fees$ 3,191,440$ 263,142
City of Edmonton - Administration410,246123,787
City of Edmonton - Conservation393,92125,187
City of Edmonton - Projects157,500175,000
Interest and other income  28,827  30,127

  4,181,934  617,243

Expenditures
Artist fees2,820,420208,005
Staffing costs and benefits286,011256,126
Projects118,684140,917
Rent58,11759,353
Office costs36,29842,444
Conservation expense97,52243,510
Selection committee10,1515,979
Consulting fees              -   38,500

  3,427,203  794,834

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures754,731(177,591)

Transfer from (to) General Fund  25,785  (51,857)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance780,516(229,448)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  1,150,448  1,379,896

Fund Balance, End of Year (Note 10)$  1,930,964$  1,150,448

COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT  
GRANTS FUND

20192018

Revenue
City of Edmonton Community 

Investment Grants$ 9,928,000$ 9,928,000
Investment income48,66948,723
Miscellaneous income 33,500 4,400

  10,010,169 9,981,123

Expenditures
Arts Operating Grants6,269,4806,256,050
Festival Operating Grants1,859,6951,791,500
Edmonton Artists Individual Grants848,6251,039,210
Arts and Museum Building 

Operating Grants463,900370,800
Cultural Diversity Grants214,200219,930
Festival Seed Grants100,00066,500
Travel Grants81,481100,773
Major Parade and Celebration Grants75,00063,470
Organizational Support Grants23,56939,300
Administration14,419295,220
Community Arts Grants  9,800 88,370

       9,960,169      10,331,123

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over 
Expenditures50,000(350,000)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  125,000  475,000

Fund Balance, End of Year$ 175,000$ 125,000

GENERAL FUND20192018
Net Inflow (Outflow) of Cash Related to 

the Following Activities:
Operating Activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures$ 204,828$ 313,366
Change in non-cash balances relating 

to operations
Accounts receivable38,935(21,385)
Accounts payable  14,762  10,596

  258,525  302,577

Financing Activities
Due from TIX on the Square Fund(63,703)13,703
Transfer to Property and Equipment 

Fund
(84,850)(42,761)

Transfer to TIX on the Square Fund(104,565)(96,453)
Transfer from Public Art Fund(25,785)51,857
Transfer from Casino Fund  9,850  10,603

  (269,053)  (63,051)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash  (10,528)  239,526

Cash, Beginning of Year  1,973,689  1,734,163

Cash, End of Year$ 1,963,161$ 1,973,689

Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance for the Year Ended December 31, 2019Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance
for the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Statement of Financial Position December 31, 2019  Statement of Cash Flows for the 
Year Ended December 31, 2019

TIX on the Square

Owned and operated by the Edmonton 
Arts Council, TIX on the Square offers 
low-cost ticketing services and support 
to local artists and venues, and a retail 
space to showcase the work of regional 
artists and makers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The focus of the Edmonton Arts Council (EAC) in 

2019 was on governance and operational systems to 

implement Connections & Exchanges: A 10-Year Plan To 

Transform Arts and Heritage In Edmonton, approved by 

Edmonton City Council in October 2018. City Council 

also approved $5,000,000 in additional funds for the 

EAC to implement the Aims and Actions outlined in  

Connections & Exchanges over the next four years. 

The majority of the new funds will flow through a 

reimagined suite of investment programs, while the 

remainder is invested in EAC operations to deliver 

impactful programs and services. 

As we transition into implementing the plan, the 

EAC Board is guiding the consultations with the arts 

community. The Grant Review and Transition (GRT) 

Committee, an ad-hoc committee of the Board, is 

providing ongoing strategic direction to the review of 

the EAC’s granting portfolio and shaping the online 

engagement surveys and community consultations. The 

community’s strong participation is giving us valuable 

information to reimagine the EAC’s operating programs 

and assessment processes, revealing gaps and pointing 

to opportunities to build new investment mechanisms 

in 2020 and beyond. 

Survey insights, coupled with foresight by the GRT 

Committee and Board, enabled the EAC to invest 

$1,172,900 in reserve funds through the Connections 

& Exchanges Initiatives program. The EAC invested 

in 43 initiatives covering artistic experimentation, 

organizational development, audience engagement 

and sector-based partnerships. The EAC is excited 

to continue the dialogue with the community, as we 

reimagine our granting portfolio to invest for impact. 

Operationally, the EAC team has embraced the work of 

implementation, assisted by new members who joined 

us to strengthen our relationships with Indigenous 

communities, Equity-seeking groups, our grant-making 

practice and ticketing and retail operations at TIX on 

the Square. Among the highlights: EAC Conservation 

team’s completion of the meticulous multi-year 

restoration and relocation of an untitled mural by 

Alberta artist Norman Yates at the Stanley A. Milner 

Library; EAC community programming’s continued 

expansion beyond Churchill Square to neighbourhoods 

across the city; and Grants and Communications 

staff collaborating to host the inaugural “Munarts 

Conference,” engaging professionals from Municipal 

Arts Councils across Canada in a national conversation. 

The new format of this annual report features a foldout 

map, a sampling of the work undertaken or supported 

by the EAC in 2019. 

On behalf of EAC Board, staff, and the community, we 

express our gratitude to the Mayor and City Council 

for their tremendous commitment to supporting and 

enhancing Edmonton’s reputation as a city of creativity 

and culture. Together, guided by Connections & 
Exchanges, we will build the inclusive, equitable and 

artistically exciting Edmonton of the future. 

Noel Xavier, Board Chair and  
Sanjay Shahani, Executive Director

Message from Board Chair and Executive Director

583 
events promoted 

through TIX

33  
new artists show-
cased in the shop

18,757 
tickets sold at  

TIX on the Square

242 
artists showcased  

in the shop

To the Members of:

The Edmonton Arts Council Society

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Edmonton Arts Council Society, which comprise the 

financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balance 

and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Society as at December 31, 2019, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit Organizations (ASNFPO).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 

of  the  Financial  Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities  in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with ASNFPO, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Society or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control.

·	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

·	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 

our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

·	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Edmonton, Alberta
April 6, 2020   Chartered Professional Accountants

Churchill Square 

Highlights:

·	 The temporary 
closure of the 
City Hall ice 
surface inspired 
an indoor-only 
focus for winter 
programming,  
with live bands  
in City Hall for 
Swing ’n City 
Sundays (including 
Salsa City Sunday).  

·	 Launch of the ArtCart, 
a partnership with 
the Art Gallery of 
Alberta to bring free 
art activities to the 
Square.

·	 The return of Cypher 
Wild, alongside other 
perennial favourites  
such as Zumba, and  
Live at Lunch.

Public Art

In 2019, eight artworks were added to the 
City of Edmonton’s public art collection 
through the City’s Percent for Art policy 
(details on reverse). In addition to the 
ongoing stewardship and administration 
of the civic collection, the EAC offered 
transitory public art opportunities to 
23 local artists through the YEGCanvas 
partnership with Pattison Outdoor 
Advertising.

Conservation

The EAC Conservation Team continued 
their work of taking care of the 260 
artworks in the public art collection, 
while also completing the three-year 
long restoration and re-installation of 
the untitled Norman Yates mural in the 
Stanley A. Milner EPL and the restoration 
and relocation of Spectators by Ron 
Kostyniuk from its original location in 
Clareview Arena since 1992, now installed 
in Castle Downs Arena. 

Grants

Every year, EAC grant programs help countless Edmontonians attend 
performances, explore exhibits, expand their creative skills, share their artistic 
creations, celebrate their communities and much, much more. 

In total, the EAC managed the distribution of approximately $10 million in grant 
funds in 2019.

Operating Grants

·	 Festival Operating: Enhancing the 
ability of organizations to produce and 
present festival celebrations  

·	 Festival Seed: Supporting new or 
emerging festival celebrations

·	 Arts Building Operating: Investing 
in the maintenance of public arts 
facilities 

·	 Arts Operating: Operational funding 
for a wide-range of organizations 
to produce, exhibit, support and 
perform art for the benefit of all 
Edmontonians 

·	 Cornerstone Arts Operating: 
Supporting our city’s large arts 
organizations that also own and 
operate major cultural facilities 

·	 Celebrations: Assisting with 
the production of local one-
day celebratory events and/or 
parades

Connections & Exchanges  
Initiatives Grant

A new program supporting 
organizations to pursue their own 
goals, aspirations and strategic 
plans that align with the Ambitions, 
Aims and Actions in Connections & 
Exchanges.

Project Grants

·	 Artist Project Grants: Supporting 
individual artists to create work 
and develop their practice

·	 Travel Grants: Aiding local artists 
and arts groups to participate 
in professional and creative 
development opportunities outside 
of Edmonton

·	 Cultural Diversity in the Arts Program: 
Expanding Edmonton’s cultural and 
artistic footprint through innovation 
and inclusivity

·	 Edmonton Artists’ Trust Fund: 
Investing in the careers of Edmonton 
artists, encouraging them to continue 
creating in our community   
(In partnership with the Edmonton 
Community Foundation, with 
additional investment from the Eldon 
and Anne Foote family fund)

·	 Community Arts: Bringing a 
community together in shared, 
collaborative, creative experiences led 
by professional artists  
(Funded in part by the City of 
Edmonton Community Investment 
Program and in part by The Lee Fund 
for the Arts endowment held by the 
Edmonton Community Foundation)

In 2019...

2019 Edmonton 
Artists’ Trust  
Fund recipients:

Left to right:  
Bevin Dooley,  
Rayanne Haines,  
Hunter Cardinal,  
Carla Taylor,  
Alan Henderson,  
Titilope Sonuga, 
Jonathan Kawchuk, 
aAron Munson,  
Billie Zizi and  
Scott Portingale.

2019 Cultural Diversity in the Arts project grant recipients:

Left to right: Andrea Beça, Paul Jonasion Giang, Gomathi Boorada, 

Christian Pérès Gibaut, Zsofia Opra-Szabo, Shima Aisha Robinson, Althea 

Cunningham, Jeong Ung Song, Aboud Salman, Councillor Ben Henderson 

(presenter), Narcissa Nightingale, Frankie Fingerling, Luciana Erregue-Sacchi 

and Amena Shehab.

(Photos: Audrey French Photography)

Styrene King by Ania Telfer, 
YEG Canvas 2019

Edmonton Arts Council

Prince of Wales Armouries, 2nd Flr. 
10440 - 108 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5H 3Z9  

P  780.424.2787    
F  780.425.7620

     /edmontonarts 

     @artsedmonton 

     @yegarts

edmontonarts.ca  

TIX on the Square

       @tixonthesquare

tixonthesquare.ca




